

FEI WORLD EQUESTRIAN GAMES[™] TRYON 2018

VETERINARY AND FARRIERY SERVICES GUIDE

Version 1

September 11th – September 23rd, 2018



INTRODUCTION

The *FEI World Equestrian Games*TM *Tryon 2018 (WEG) Veterinary and Farriery Services Guide* describes the provision of veterinary services at the WEG; as well as introducing the staff and associated services and facilities, such as farriery and equine therapy. It also includes:

- Dates and times of key events, and
- Detailed information on veterinary support.

It is essential that National Federation (NF) delegates, especially Team Veterinarians, familiarize themselves with the information contained within this guide. Any update or changes will be posted on the notice board in the reception area of the Veterinary Clinic and communicated by email.

If you have questions about information contained in this guide, please do not hesitate to contact the WEG Veterinary Services Managers: Anne Baskett at (864) 415-1912 or abaskett@tryonweg.com; Bill Hay at bhay@tryonweg.com; or Yves Rossier at yves.rossier@umontreal.ca.

On behalf of the WEG 2018 Organizing Committee Veterinary Services Team (OC VST), it is our pleasure to welcome you to the Tryon International Equestrian Center (TIEC), North Carolina, and wish you the best at the WEG.



Anne Baskett Veterinary Services Manager



Bill Hay Veterinary Services Manager



Yves Rossier WEG 2018 Veterinary Advisor

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	FEI REGULATIONS
2.	OFFICIAL EQUINE TRANSPORT
3. REQI	EQUINE VACCINATIONS, ANTHELMINTIC TREATMENT AND HEALTH TESTING JIREMENTS
3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5 EU	EQUINE PIROPLASMOSIS (EP) REQUIREMENTS
4.	REQUIREMENTS FOR ARRIVAL EXAMS AT TIEC 6
4.2 HA	ARANTINE (PAQ) AT TIEC
5.	REQUIRED DAILY BIOSECURITY EXAMINATIONS DURING THE WEG
6.	FEI VETERINARY COMMISSION BRIEFINGS TO TEAM VETERINARIANS
7.	HORSE INSPECTION DATES10
8.	EQUINE ANTI-DOPING AND CONTROLLED MEDICATION (EADCM)
8.1	PRE-ARRIVAL EADCM TESTING (PAT) AND ELECTIVE TESTING
9.	KEY PERSONNEL
9.1 9.2 9.3 9.4 9.5	EADCM TESTING OFFICIALS
10.	LICENSING AND CREDENTIALING OF VETERINARIANS
10.	1. TEMPORARY VETERINARY LICENSING142. NATIONAL FEDERATION TEAM VETERINARIANS143. INDEPENDENT VETERINARIANS AND EQUINE THERAPISTS15
11.	IMPORTATION OF DRUGS AND MEDICATIONS FOR TEAM VETERINARIAN USE
12.	REGISTRATION OF PERMITTED EQUINE THERAPISTS (PETS)
13.	ACCESS TO STABLES
14.	VETERINARY FACILITIES
14.	1. VETERINARY CLINIC

	CHARGES1	
14.3.	ROUTINE SERVICES1	.7
14.4.	EMERGENCY SERVICES 1	.7
14.5.	EXTERNAL REFERRAL CLINICS 1	.7
14.6.		
14.7.	CLINICAL PATHOLOGY SERVICES	.8
14.8.	PHARMACY SERVICES	.9
14.9.	NECROPSY SERVICES 1	.9
15. E	QUINE AMBULANCE SERVICES	9
		-
16. F	ARRIERY FACILITIES 2	20
	GENERAL COORDINATION	
16.1.		20
16.1. 16.2. 16.3.	GENERAL COORDINATION	20 20 21
16.1. 16.2. 16.3.	GENERAL COORDINATION	20 20 21
16.1. 16.2. 16.3. 16.4.	GENERAL COORDINATION	20 20 21 21
16.1. 16.2. 16.3. 16.4. 16.5.	GENERAL COORDINATION	20 20 21 21 21
16.1. 16.2. 16.3. 16.4. 16.5. 16.6.	GENERAL COORDINATION	20 20 21 21 21 21
16.1. 16.2. 16.3. 16.4. 16.5. 16.6. 17. C	GENERAL COORDINATION2FORGES2SUPPLIES2FARRIERY SERVICES2THE VENUE FARRIERS2OPENING HOURS2	20 20 21 21 21 21 21 21

TICKS 24

Date		Competition		Horses Inspection
11 September 2018			08:30 11:00 15:00	<i>Dressage</i> 1 st Horse Inspection <i>Reining</i> Horse Inspection <i>Endurance</i> Horse Inspection
07: 12 September 2018 16:		Endurance – Team & Individual Competition Reining – Team Competition & Individual Session 1 Dressage – Team Final & Individual Qualification (Grand Prix Day 1) Reining – Team Competition & Individual Session 2	15:00	<i>Eventing</i> 1 st Horse Inspection
13 September 2018	08:45 09:00 14:00	<i>Dressage</i> – Team Final & Individual Qualification (Grand Prix Day 2) <i>Eventing</i> – Dressage Team & Individual <i>Reining</i> – Individual Qualification Competition		
14 September 2018	09:00 10:30	<i>Eventing</i> – Dressage Team & Individual <i>Dressage</i> – Individual Final Competition		
15 September 2018	11:00 18:00	<i>Eventing</i> – Cross-Country Team & Individual <i>Reining</i> – Individual Final Competition	09:00	Dressage 2 nd Horse Inspection
16 September 2018	08:30 15:15	<i>Dressage</i> – Grand Prix Freestyle Individual <i>Eventing</i> – Jumping Team & Individual	09:00	Eventing 2 nd Horse Inspection

Table 1: 2018 WEG Tryon International Equine Center (TIEC) Key Competition Dates (all times are Eastern Daylight Time Zone)

Date		Competition		Horses Inspection
17 September 2018			09:00 11:30 13:00	Para-Dressage 1 st Horse Inspection Vaulting Horse Inspection Jumping 1 st Horse Inspection
18 September 2018	08:30 09:00 09:30	Para-Dressage – Individual Grade IV, II and V Jumping – Warm-Up Competition Vaulting – Squad, Female & Male Individual	07:30	Jumping Horse Re-Inspection
19 September 2018	08:30 09:00 09:30	<i>Para-Dressage</i> – Individual Grade III and I <i>Jumping</i> – Speed Competition <i>Vaulting</i> – Freestyle Competition		
20 September 2018	09:00 09:00 12:00	<i>Jumping</i> – Team Competition Day 1 <i>Para-Dressage</i> – Team Grade IV, II and V <i>Vaulting</i> - Technical and Freestyle	10:00	Driving Horses Inspection
21 September 11:00 <i>L</i>		Para-Dressage – Team Grade III and I Driving – Dressage Phase Jumping – Team Competition Day 2	17:00	<i>Para-Dressage</i> 2 nd Horse Inspection (Grades II, IV and V)
22 September 2018	09:30 11:00 12:00	Para-Dressage – Individual Freestyle Driving – Marathon Phase Vaulting – Freestyle Competition	08:00	<i>Para-Dressage</i> 2 nd Horse Inspection (Grades I and III)
23 September 201809:30Driving - Obstacle-Cone Phase10:00Jumping – Individual Competition		08:00	Jumping 2 nd Horse Inspection	

1. FEI REGULATIONS

All FEI Rules and Regulations (including FEI General Regulations, Statutes, Sport Rules, Veterinary and EADCM Regulations) must be respected during the period of time when Horses and Athletes taking part in WEG are on the WEG venue (Tryon International Equestrian Center). FEI Officials (including FEI Veterinary Officials and FEI Stewards) will be present throughout this period monitoring conduct to ensure all relevant Rules and Regulations are respected. Any infringements will be handled in accordance with FEI Statutes, General Regulations, and/or the relevant Sport Rules. Such infringements occurring prior to the start of the 'Period of the Event' (as defined in FEI General Regulations Appendix A) may be referred to the Secretary General/FEI Tribunal.

The relevant regulations may be downloaded from the following links:

- FEI Veterinary Regulations (2018 Edition):
 http://inside.fei.org/fei/regulations/veterinary
- FEI Equine Anti-Doping and Controlled Medication Regulations (2018 Edition): http://inside.fei.org/fei/cleansport

2. OFFICIAL EQUINE TRANSPORT

The following agents have been contracted by the WEG Organizing Committee to provide equine transport services and the associated logistical planning.

Peden Bloodstock GmbH

Mr. Martin Atock - Managing Director Leyenburg 47509 Rheurdt Germany Email: <u>atock@peden.de</u>; <u>henry@peden.co.uk</u>; <u>fiona@peden.de</u> Tel: +49 208 378 2410; +44 7818 413 185; +44 7748 864 089

The Dutta Corporation

Mr. Tim Dutta 104 Titicus Road – Suite G North Salem, NY 10560 Email: <u>timdutta@aol.com</u> Tel: (914) 276-3380 Fax: (914) 276-3883 Further details regarding transport and equine logistical matters are provided in the Equestrian Freight Manual available on the FEI website at <u>http://inside.fei.org/fei/fei-weg/2018</u>

3. EQUINE VACCINATIONS, ANTHELMINTIC TREATMENT AND HEALTH TESTING REQUIREMENTS

FEI and the State of North Carolina have compulsory vaccination requirements. The State of North Carolina alerts participants that arboviruses, specifically Eastern Equine Encephalitis (EEE) and West Nile Virus (WNV) are endemic in the state and recommends vaccination. Table 2 lists the number of arbovirus cases diagnosed in North Carolina during the past six years. All cases listed in the table occurred in unvaccinated equines.

Year	EEE Cases Diagnosed	WNV Cases Diagnosed
2012	21	3
2013	13	1
2014	12	3
2015	4	0
2016	9	0
2017	7	2

Table 2: Arbovirus Cases Diagnosed in North Carolina

3.1 VACCINATION REQUIREMENTS

- Equine Influenza Compulsory: ALL horses must be vaccinated in accordance with FEI Regulations.
- Equine Herpes Virus 1 & 4 Compulsory: All horses must be vaccinated in accordance with vaccine manufacturer dosing and administration guidelines within the product datasheet. It is required that the last vaccine in the original series, or the every 6 month required booster vaccine after completion of the original series, be administered less than six months prior to the end of the WEG.
- WNV and EEE Recommended but NOT Compulsory: Horses are to be vaccinated in accordance with American Association of Equine Practitioner (AAEP) guidelines or the vaccine manufacturer dosing and administration guidelines within the product datasheet no less than 14 days prior to shipping and no more than six months prior to the end of the WEG.

No vaccinations within 14 days of shipping.

All vaccinations are recorded in the horse's passport – scans of these pages will need to be uploaded onto HippoBase and will be verified by the Organizing Committee Veterinary

Services Team (OC VST). Any horse that does not meet the proof of vaccination requirements according to FEI Veterinary Regulations Articles 1002 and 1003 and the State of North Carolina equine rhino pneumonitis guidelines will <u>NOT</u> be permitted entry to the venue.

3.2 ANTHELMINTIC TREATMENT REQUIREMENTS

All horses, regardless of their Piroplasmosis status, entering the TIEC must have been administered with an Anthelmintic containing ivermectin, doramectin or moxidectin, at a dose not less than 200 mcg/kg body weight during the two to four-week period preceding venue entry.

An anthelmintic form signed by the administering veterinarian must accompany each horse to the venue (see Annex # 1 for the WEG 2018 Anthelmintic Treatment Form). Horses will be detained and treated with an anthelmintic by veterinary personnel if they arrive without this documentation.

3.3 EQUINE PIROPLASMOSIS (EP) REQUIREMENTS

All horses entering TIEC must have been tested by the National Veterinary Services Laboratory (NVSL) for EP – both *Thelerelia equi* and *Babesia caballi* – prior to transport.

After release from Post-Arrival Quarantine (PAQ), all Piroplasmosis-positive horses (PPH) which have entered the United States on Piroplasmosis waivers will be identified with a visible, unique color identification and will be stabled together in dedicated PPH stables away from Piroplasmosis-negative horses. Strict biosecurity will be enforced by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Animal and Plant Health Inspection Services (APHIS), and all horse movements throughout the venue will be monitored. As part of the PPH protocol, these horses will be examined for ticks each time they enter the PPH stables, and an acaricide will be applied as needed.

Additional information will be provided in due course.

3.4 PRE-ARRIVAL HEALTH TESTING REQUIREMENTS – DOMESTIC ARRIVALS

The following health tests are required to be performed prior to arrival:

- EP negative test result from the National Veterinary Services Laboratory (NVSL), Ames, Iowa within previous 30 to 60 days.
- Equine infectious anemia (EIA) negative test result within 12 months prior to the end of the WEG.

Original certificates must be presented. Digital copies and photocopies will not be accepted.

3.5 PRE-EXPORT HEALTH TESTING REQUIREMENTS – HORSES ARRIVING ON EUROPEAN FLIGHTS

Non-positive test results for EIA, dourine and glanders must be documented prior to transport to the United States. Piroplasmosis test results must be documented prior to transport to the United States. The pre-export blood testing requested by Peden will meet the piroplasmosis, dourine, glanders and EIA test requirements for transport to the United States. Additional testing will be conducted on arrival. For more details, see the *Equestrian Freight Manual* for details.

4. **REQUIREMENTS FOR ARRIVAL EXAMS AT TIEC**

Upon arrival at the TIEC, all horses will undergo a veterinary examination. If any horse is judged to have clinical signs of disease or a containable infectious condition, the horse and the epidemiological group (if applicable) will be moved to the isolation area for further clinical examination, monitoring, and testing.

Any horse with a positive diagnosis of an infectious disease will be removed from the venue and will not have access to training arenas thereafter.

Horse passports and veterinary documents will be collected during the FEI Examination on Arrival and will be held by the OC while the horse is on the venue. Horse passports will be returned upon the horse's departure from the venue. Original certificates must be presented – digital copies and photocopies will not be accepted. For horses travelling on the EU charter, the horse passport will be collected in Liege and returned in Liege.

Additional information and protocols will be provided in due course.

4.1. HORSES ARRIVING ON EUROPEAN FLIGHTS UNDERGOING POST-ARRIVAL QUARANTINE (PAQ) AT TIEC

Horses arriving via European flights will be transported from Greenville-Spartanburg Airport under escort to the TIEC where they will enter PAQ.

Upon arrival at TIEC, an initial veterinary examination will be conducted by veterinarians from a United States regulatory agency (USDA or the North Carolina Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services (NCDA&CS)). The FEI Examination on Arrival will be carried at the same time under the supervision of a FEI Veterinary Delegate. The examination will consist of a passport check (identification and vaccinations) and a clinical examination that includes:

- Rectal temperature,
- Pulse,

- Respiration, and
- General well-being.

This clinical examination is designed to identify horses which may suffer from infectious or contagious disease. Travel rugs, blankets and leg boots/bandages will be removed to facilitate identification and assessment of the horse.

Blood samples will be collected for EIA, dourine, glanders and EP testing.

Horses will then be placed in quarantine for a minimum of 42 hours with strict biosecurity protocols enforced by United States regulatory officials. There will be scheduled access for grooms during PAQ. NF Team Vets will have access to PAQ on arrival to draw blood. Additional information and protocols will be provided in due course.

See Table 3 for the key arrival and departure dates for horses arriving from Europe undergoing PAQ at TIEC.

Discipline	Flight Arrivals	Into discipline stables	Stables open to Domestic Horses	Stables Close (day after last flight leaves PAQ)	Horse Inspection	Final Horse Departure
Reining	2 Sep	4 Sep	4 Sep	7 Sep	11 Sep	16 Sep
Endurance	2 Sep 5 Sep	4 Sep 7 Sep	7 Sep	8 Sep	11 Sep	16 Sep
Dressage	3 Sep 4 Sep	5 Sep 6 Sep	6 Sep	7 Sep	11 Sep	18 Sep
Eventing	3 Sep 5 Sep	5 Sep 7 Sep	7 Sep	8 Sep	12 Sep	18 Sep
Para- Dressage	9 Sep 11 Sep	11 Sep 13 Sep	13 Sep	14 Sep	17 Sep	26 Sep
Vaulting	10 Sep 11 Sep	12 Sep 13 Sep	13 Sep	14 Sep	17 Sep	26 Sep
Jumping	11 Sep 12 Sep 13 Sep	13 Sep 14 Sep 15 Sep	15 Sep	16 Sep	17 Sep	26 Sep
Driving	10 Sep 14 Sep	12 Sep 16 Sep	16 Sep	17 Sep	20 Sep	25 Sep

Table 3. Key Arrival and Departure	Dates for Horses Arriving on	European Flights Undergoing PAQ at TIEC
Tuble 0. Rey Minutal and Departale	Duco for fiorses furthing on	

4.2. EXAMINATION OF DOMESTIC HORSES, CANADIAN HORSES, AND HORSES THAT HAVE COMPLETED PAQ IN CHICAGO, MIAMI, OR NEW YORK ARRIVING AT TIEC

NCDA&CS regulatory officials will conduct arrival examinations for domestic and Canadian horses, and for those horses who have completed PAQ in Chicago, Miami, or New York.

The examination will consist of a passport check (identification and vaccinations) and a clinical examination that includes:

- Rectal temperature,
- Pulse,
- Respiration, and
- General well-being.

This clinical examination is designed to identify horses which may suffer from infectious or contagious disease. Travel rugs, blankets, and leg boots/bandages will be removed to facilitate identification and assessment of the horse. The FEI Examination on Arrival will be carried out at the same time under the supervision of an FEI Veterinary Delegate.

Table 4 lists the arrival times by discipline. Arrival examinations will be scheduled by appointment between 0700 and 1200 on the designated days for each discipline. These times will be STRICTLY adhered to and no late arrivals will be permitted. All times are listed in Eastern Daylight Time Zone (EDT). When arrival times cannot be met as outlined in Table 4, NFs should contact stable manager Mr. Lance Bennett at <u>lbennett@tryonweg.com</u>.

Discipline	Opening of Stables	Times of Arrival Exams
Reining	4 and 5 Sept.	07:00 - 12:00
Endurance	7 and 8 Sept.	07:00 - 12:00
Eventing	7 and 8 Sept.	07:00 - 12:00
Dressage	6 and 7 Sept.	07:00 - 12:00
Para-dressage	13 and 14 Sept.	07:00 – 12:00
Vaulting	13 and 14 Sept.	07:00 – 12:00
Driving	16 and 17 Sept.	07:00 – 12:00
Jumping	15 and 16 Sept.	07:00 – 12:00

Table 4: Arrival times at the TIEC for Domestic Horses, Canadian Horses, and Horses Completing PAQ in Chicago, Miami, or New York

4.3. CONTAGIOUS EQUINE METRITIS (CEM)

After release from Post-Arrival Quarantine (PAQ), all horses from CEM-affected countries which have entered on CEM waivers will be identified with a visible, unique color identification and stabled within discipline stables, but separated from non-CEM waiver horses. All horse movements throughout the venue will be monitored with strict adherence to the CEM protocol required.

Additional information and protocols will be provided in due course.

5. REQUIRED DAILY BIOSECURITY EXAMINATIONS DURING THE WEG

As stated in the WEG 2018 Biosecurity Protocol, once horses have entered their competition stables they are required to have rectal temperatures taken twice a day (morning and evening). This will be done under the responsibility of the Team Veterinarian. If there is no Team Veterinarian available, the OC VST is responsible for monitoring the rectal temperature of horses. A form will be provided to affix to the stall door to record temperatures for each horse. **The Team Veterinarian will sign the rectal temperature form daily.** It is the responsibility of the Team Veterinarian to report any irregularities in temperature or health status to the OC VST immediately.

Members of the OC VST are available to provide advice and assistance upon request. Additional information and protocols will be provided in due course.

6. FEI VETERINARY COMMISSION BRIEFINGS TO TEAM VETERINARIANS

Briefings for Team Veterinarians will be held by discipline. See Table 5 for the briefing schedule. All times are in EDT. Any changes to this schedule will be posted at the Veterinary Clinic and communicated by email.

Discipline	Date	Time	Location
Reining	10 Sept.	17:00	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Dressage	10 Sept.	16:30	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Endurance	10 Sept.	19:00	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Eventing	11 Sept.	17:00	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Para-Dressage	16 Sept.	16:00	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Jumping	17 Sept.	16:30	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Vaulting	17 Sept.	15:00	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic
Driving	19 Sept.	18:00	Meeting Room WEG Vet Clinic

Table 5: FEI Veterinary Commission Briefings

7. HORSE INSPECTION DATES

See Table 6 for the horse inspection schedule. All times are in EDT.

T - 1-1 -	<u>.</u>	11	1	0 - 1 1 1 -
I able	6.	Horse	Inspection	Scheaule

Discipline	Date	Time
Reining	11 Sept.	11:00
Dressage		
1 st Inspection	11 Sept.	08:30
2 nd Inspection	15 Sept.	09:00
Para-Dressage		
1 st Inspection	17 Sept.	09:00
2 nd Inspection (II-IV-V)	21 Sept.	17:00
2 nd Inspection (I-III)	22 Sept.	08:00
Endurance	11 Sept.	15:00
Eventing		
1 st Inspection	12 Sept.	15:00
2 nd Inspection	16 Sept.	09:00
Jumping		
1 st Inspection	17 Sept.	13:00
Re-Inspection	18 Sept.	07:30
2 nd Inspection	23 Sept.	08:00
Vaulting	17 Sept.	11:30
Driving	20 Sept.	10:00

8. EQUINE ANTI-DOPING AND CONTROLLED MEDICATION (EADCM)

See FEI Veterinary Regulations 14th edition 2018, effective 1 January 2018, Chapter VII.

8.1. PRE-ARRIVAL EADCM TESTING (PAT) AND ELECTIVE TESTING

Pre-Arrival Testing (PAT) and Elective Testing is available to National Federations. For further information, go to http://inside.fei.org/fei/cleanport/horses/weg-pat.

9. KEY PERSONNEL

9.1. FEI VETERINARY OFFICIALS

FEI Veterinary Officials will be available to offer advice and assistance as required. See Tables 7-12 for the lists of FEI Veterinary Officials.

Table 7: FEI Veterinary Commission One

Role: Jumping, Dressage, Reining and Vaulting		
President	Mike Tomlinson (USA)	
Foreign Vet Delegate	Willem Otte (BEL)	
Members	Alessandro Centinaio (ITA)	
	Daniel Meister (SWI)	
	Howard Newitt (GBR)	

Table 8: FEI Veterinary Commission Two

Role: Eventing, Para-Dressage and Driving	
President	Emily Sandler-Burtness (USA)
Foreign Vet Delegate	Jennifer Hall (GBR)
Members	Bernd Stanglmeier (CAN)
	Sonia Wittreck (FRA)
	Karen Nyrop (USA)

Table 9: FEI Veterinary Commission Three

Role: Endurance	
President	Thomas Timmons (USA)
Foreign Vet Delegate	Kieran O'Brien (IRL)
Members	Donald Larry Hamilton (CAN)
	Antonia Mota Pereira (POR)
	Antonio Farrim (POR)
	Anthony Noel Parsons (NZL)
	Gerson Acedo Vieira (BRA)
	Greg Ghyoros (FRA)
	Hosain Abbara (QAT)
	Antoine Seguin (FRA)
	Yassim Montemery (TUN)
	Dennis Seymore (USA)

Table 10: FEI Endurance Veterinary Treatment Officials

Role: Endurance Veterinary Treating Officials	
President	Martha Mary Misheff (USA)
Veterinary Treating	Lynne Johnson (USA)
Officials	Michael Vanzwol (USA)
	Iciar Tarancon Heras (ESP)
	Maria Cristina Garcia Cantu (UAE)
	Anne Christopherson (USA)
	Eduardo Gascon Bayarri (ESP)

Table 11: FEI Examination Veterinarians

Examination Veterinarians	
Role	Name
Examination Veterinarians	Tracey Turner (USA) Colin Robert (GBR)

Table 12: FEI Veterinary Department

FEI Veterinary Directorate	
FEI Veterinary Director	Göran Akerström
FEI Veterinary Advisor	Caterina Termine

9.2. EADCM TESTING OFFICIALS

Table 13: EADCM Testing Officials

Role	All disciplines
FEI Equine Anti-Doping and Controlled Medication Program Veterinarians	TBD

9.3. VETERINARY SERVICES MANAGER AND VETERINARY CLINIC ADMINISTRATORS

Table 14: Veterinary Services Manager and Veterinary Clinic Administrators

Veterinary Services personnel	
Role	Name
Veterinary Services Managers	Anne Baskett DVM, DACVS (USA) Bill Hay, DVM, DACVS (USA)
Veterinary Services Advisor	Yves Rossier, DVM, DACVIM (CAN)
Biosecurity Officers	Josh Slater, BVM&S, PhD, DECEIM (GBR) Nimet Browne, DVM, MPH, DACVIM (USA)
Arrival Exams Coordinator	Karen Coumbe, DVM (GBR)
Eventing Treating Team Leader	Debbie Williamson, DVM (USA)
Endurance Treating Team Leader	Martha Misheff, DVM (USA)
Reining Treating Team Leader	Jonathon Foreman, DVM (USA)
Jumping Treating Team Leader	Sergio Salinas, DVM (MEX)
Driving Treating Team Leader	Richard Forfa, DVM (USA)
Emergency Services Coordinator	Myra Durham, DVM, DACVS (USA)
Imaging Specialist	Kurt Selberg, DVM (USA)
Equine Ambulance Services Director	Mr. Roger Lauze (USA)
Farrier Team Coordinator	James Gilchrist, APF (USA)

9.4. PERMITTED TREATING VETERINARIANS

Two (2) to three (3) FEI Permitted Treating Veterinarians per discipline will be on-site during the day. One (1) veterinarian will be on-site during the night. Specialist veterinarians will be available in the Veterinary Clinic to assist Team Veterinarians as needed. Contact details will be provided at the Veterinary Clinic.

9.5. UNITED STATES REGULATORY PERSONNEL

USDA and NCDA&CS regulatory personnel are available on the grounds throughout the WEG to:

- Review importation documents,
- Monitor PAQ and biosecurity,
- Provide oversight of SOPs for EP and CEM horses, and
- Assist Peden with export documents as needed.

For questions, please contact Dr. Fiona McCormack MRCVS with Peden Bloodstock GmbH at <u>fiona@peden.de</u> and +44 7748 864 089.

10. LICENSING AND CREDENTIALING OF VETERINARIANS

10.1. TEMPORARY VETERINARY LICENSING

All veterinarians, except NF Team Veterinarians, participating in the WEG must be licensed in the State of North Carolina, or must obtain a 60-day temporary permit through the North Carolina Veterinary Medical Board (NCVMB).

The 60-day temporary permit is for a non-resident veterinarian with a valid license in another state, territory or district of the United States or a foreign country, provided that such temporary permit shall be **issued for a period of no more than sixty (60) days** (N.C.G.S. 90-187.4).

For those seeking a **60-Day Temporary Permit**, go to the NCVMB Home Page: <u>http://www.ncvmb.org/content/documents/WEG%2060-</u>

<u>day%20Temp APPLICATION 2018.pdf</u>, print the application and submit the paper application to the NC State Veterinary Medical Board.

Prior to having their application processed, veterinarians who are not Team Veterinarians or FEI Official Veterinarians will have to be approved for licensing by the OC VST. To receive this approval, please contact Dr. Anne Baskett at <u>abaskett@tryonweg.com</u>.

10.2. NATIONAL FEDERATION TEAM VETERINARIANS

NFs are required to register their Team Veterinarians with the Organizing Committee Veterinary Services Team by submitting a list of approved Team Veterinarians by July 1, 2018. The list must include:

- First name,
- Last name,
- FEI ID number and discipline, and
- Contact information (email and mobile phone numbers).

Send list to Dr. Anne Baskett at <u>abaskett@tryonweg.com</u>. Lists will be shared with the veterinary clinic's administrator.

Until they are registered, Team Veterinarians will not be able to:

- Use veterinary clinic facilities
- Submit samples for clinical pathology
- Obtain veterinary stock

All veterinarians must at all times visibly wear their FEI Veterinarian identification cards in addition to their accreditation while on the venue.

10.3. INDEPENDENT VETERINARIANS AND EQUINE THERAPISTS

Only NF accredited Team Veterinarians and Team Permitted Equine Therapists (PETs) registered under the Team Veterinarian, or WEG Veterinary Services Veterinarians will be permitted to treat horses. No unofficial NF veterinarians or equine therapists will be permitted access to treat any WEG horses.

11. IMPORTATION OF DRUGS AND MEDICATIONS FOR TEAM VETERINARIAN USE

Team Veterinarians who have been identified by their NF to the Veterinary Service Managers (VSM) and the NCVMB, and who have also been accredited are permitted to bring a reasonable amount, with respect to the number of horses in their care and the duration of their stay, of United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved medications, or their equivalents, and other non-prohibited nutraceuticals into the United States for the purposes of veterinary treatment of their own Team Horses. These medications are the responsibility of the administering FEI Permitted Treating Veterinarian and must comply with North Carolina Board of Pharmacy regulations.

No FEI banned substances may be imported.

No United States Drug Enforcement Administration Schedule drugs may be imported. (<u>www.dea.gov/druginfo/ds.shtml</u>)

A complete inventory list of medications must be affixed to the outside of the trunk for travel into the United States.

12. REGISTRATION OF PERMITTED EQUINE THERAPISTS (PETs)

National Federations are required to register their PETs with the Organizing Committee Veterinary Services Team by submitting a list of approved Team PETs by July 1, 2018. The list must include:

- First name,
- Last name,
- FEI treating identification number and discipline, and Team Veterinarian they are working under.
- Contact information (email and mobile phone numbers).

Send list to Dr. Anne Baskett at <u>abaskett@tryonweg.com</u>. Lists will be shared with the Veterinary clinic's administrator.

All PETs must openly display their FEI Identification card.

All PETs must adhere to FEI 2018 Veterinary Regulations, Articles 1065, 1126 and 1127, and be registered under a credentialed Team Veterinarian or WEG Veterinary Services veterinarian as outlined in those rules.

13. ACCESS TO STABLES

Stable access will be strictly controlled, and appropriate accreditation must be displayed. Only registered and accredited Team Veterinarians and Permitted Equine Therapists who are registered with the WEG Veterinary Services Team will be permitted to treat WEG horses (see also 10.3 above).

14. VETERINARY FACILITIES

14.1. VETERINARY CLINIC

The Veterinary Clinic on the venue is a temporary facility that has been installed for the WEG.

The Veterinary Clinic offers the following services:

- Clinical pathology,
- Pharmacy,
- Endoscopy,
- Radiography,
- Ultrasonography,
- Stocks, and
- Weight scale.

Veterinarians with expertise in imaging will be on-site to perform radiographs and ultrasound examinations in cooperation with the Team Veterinarians. Because of radiation safety issues, all radiographs will be performed at the Veterinary Clinic with equipment provided by Sound.

Team Veterinarians are welcome to use all imaging facilities and may review and store images on a dedicated server in the Veterinary Clinic. NFs should note that the on-site clinic does not include an operating room or facilities for specialist imaging, such as scintigraphy or magnetic resonance imaging.

Standing MRI facilities are available at Tryon Equine Hospital located 15 minutes from the venue. An equine ambulance will be available to transport horses to this facility under USDA seal. If the horse is to remain in competition, an FEI Steward will accompany the horse.

The Veterinary Clinic is open daily and has regular hours of operation from 07:00 to 18:00 EDT. 24-hour Emergency Services are available. When there are evening competitions, the Veterinary Clinic will close two hours after the end of competition.

14.2. CHARGES

Charges will be levied for medications, supplements and other supplies (various medical materials), and for clinical pathology services that are processed outside the venue.

Charges will be levied for medications, fluids, and supplies used in the treatment of horses, including those administered by Official Endurance PTV during and after competition.

On-site clinical pathology services will be free of charge for one sample per horse per day. Further services will be available for a fee. On-site imaging for injury or emergency care will also be free of charge.

Each Chef d'Equipe/NF will be required to have a credit card on file and charges will be applied to the card immediately for any medication or supplies at the Veterinary Clinic. Payment by Visa, MasterCard, or American Express is required.

All accounts must be settled in full before horse passports will be released at the end of competition.

14.3. ROUTINE SERVICES

During standard Veterinary Clinic operational hours, dedicated members of the OC Veterinary Services Team will be available to perform the following services on request:

- Visit and examine horses in their stables,
- Examine horses in the Veterinary Clinic,
- Perform more detailed diagnostic investigations in the Veterinary Clinic on behalf of Team Veterinarians or persons responsible, and
- Perform and interpret further diagnostic investigations on behalf of NFs, provide clinical advice based on the findings, and undertake FEI Veterinary Commission-approved treatment.

All services listed above must be booked in advance at the Veterinary Clinic, either by phone or in person at the Veterinary Clinic reception.

14.4. EMERGENCY SERVICES

Emergency veterinary clinical services will be available 24-hours a day whenever there are horses in the stables. For emergency assistance, please phone the main Veterinary Clinic number to reach the duty veterinarian after regular clinic hours. A full list of contacts will be available in the Veterinary Clinic.

14.5. EXTERNAL REFERRAL CLINICS

The following equine referral centers are available during the WEG if needed:

Tryon Equine Hospital 3689 Landrum Road Columbus, NC 28722 Phone: (828) 894-6065

The University of Georgia Veterinary Hospital 2200 College Station Road Athens, GA 30602 Phone: (706) 542-3223

North Carolina State University – College of Veterinary Medicine Equine Hospital 1052 William Moore Drive Raleigh, NC 27607 Phone: (919) 513-6630

When needed, an equine ambulance will be available to transport horses under USDA seal from the Veterinary Clinic on-site to these referral hospitals. If the horse is to remain in competition, an FEI Steward will accompany the horse.

As soon as a horse is transported to a referral clinic, all required veterinary care will be charged (consultation, surgery, hospitalization, medications, clinical pathology services, etc.).

14.6. EQUINE SUPPORTIVE THERAPY SERVICES

Equine Supportive Therapy services will be provided through the Veterinary Clinic on-site in accordance with FEI Veterinary Regulations. The OC VST Permitted Equine Therapists team will be under the leadership of Dr. Juan Carlos Garcia DVM. Contact information will be available at the Veterinary Clinic.

14.7. CLINICAL PATHOLOGY SERVICES

The diagnostic laboratory personnel and equipment in the Veterinary Clinic is provided by Abaxis. A list of the full range of tests is available from the Veterinary Clinic reception.

Serology, PCR and medical microbiology services are provided off-site through North Carolina State University's College of Veterinary Medicine.

Team Veterinarians must deposit clinical pathology samples at the Veterinary Clinic reception. Supplies to collect specimens may be requested at the Veterinary Clinic reception. A laboratory submission form must be filled out completely for every horse.

Hard-copy results will be available in the NF mailboxes in the Veterinary Clinic reception and the results will also be emailed to the Team Veterinarians. The turnaround times for laboratory samples will depend on the test requested. In the event of an emergency, after-hours clinical pathology services are available through the Veterinary Clinic.

14.8. PHARMACY SERVICES

A wide range of medications and other veterinary consumables are available for purchase from the Veterinary Clinic during normal operating hours. The full list of items and prices will be available from the Veterinary Clinic reception. The price list will be available upon request from July 2018 (contact Dr. Anne Baskett at <u>abaskett@tryonweg.com</u>).

Medications will only be supplied directly to Team Veterinarians who have registered with the Veterinary Clinic, and whose NF has provided a credit card number to be kept on file (Visa, MasterCard and American Express are accepted).

To purchase items from the dispensary, Team Veterinarians must:

- Provide a prescription which must be signed by both the Team Veterinarian and an Organizing Committee Veterinary Services Team member.
- The order must be signed out by the Team Veterinarian when it is picked up from the pharmacy.

14.9. NECROPSY SERVICES

As required by FEI Veterinary Regulations, a necropsy service staffed by a board-certified pathologist will be provided by the North Carolina Veterinary Diagnostic Laboratory System (NCVDLS) at their western lab facility in Fletcher, NC:

Arden Laboratory 785 Airport Road Fletcher, NC 28732 Phone: (828) 684-8188

Transportation to the Arden Laboratory will be organized exclusively through the WEG Equine Ambulance service.

15. EQUINE AMBULANCE SERVICES

Ambulance services are provided by the Massachusetts Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (MSPCA) and the Polk Equine Emergency Rescue (PEER) under the direction of Mr. Roger Lauze - MSPCA. Services are always available for off-site transport and for field-of-play support. Emergency transportation services are available 24 hours a day.

Equine ambulance and veterinary escort will be provided during transport of horses from the Greenville-Spartanburg International Airport to the venue.

16. FARRIERY FACILITIES

16.1. GENERAL COORDINATION

Games Farrier Coordinator:

David Farley CF APF-I and James Gilchrist APF

American Association of Professional Farriers Inc. and International Association of Professional Farriers Inc. (AAPF/IAPF) PO Box 223661 West Palm Beach, FL 33422



David Farley



James Gilchrist

Farriers will be available from the day the first horse arrives at the venue and remain onsite until the final horse leaves the venue. Farrier stations will be located adjacent to stabling areas.

16.2. FORGES

Forges will be available to all Team Farriers, ideally upon appointment. There, they will have access to all supplies, free of charge. The services will also be free of charge, if needed.

Absolutely no access to the stables will be possible for Team Farriers' trucks. Considering this constraint, the OC farrier team will do their utmost to facilitate Team Farriers' work.

Mobile forges will also be available by warm-up arenas (or equivalent) during the competition with everything necessary to replace a shoe quickly. For each competition, the position will be easily identifiable and mobile depending on the competition/discipline.

This service will be free of charge for NFs.

16.3. SUPPLIES

For each discipline, a specific stock of shoes, nails and other consumables (glues etc.) will be available. A specific effort has been made to provide an ideal stock. However, we recommend that every horse arrives at the venue with spare sets of shoes.

The list of supplies is available on specific request, by email, to: nfweginfo@tryonweg.com.

16.4. FARRIERY SERVICES

For each discipline/competition up to 3 types of farriers will be available, to provide the best possible service.

The first assistant farrier is also a specialized farrier for the discipline and will be available at the warm-up/training area during competition. He/she will be identifiable by an armband.

16.5. THE VENUE FARRIERS

In addition to farriers providing cover during competition, two to three further farriers will be on-venue during the day at all times. One farrier will be on call during the night.

16.6. OPENING HOURS

Outside of the opening hours of the forge, an emergency service will be available. All information will be displayed in the forge office.

17. COOLING FACILITIES – ICE AND MISTING FANS

Ice will be available:

- In the stable area,
- At the finish of each competition, and
- Mobile cooling teams will be placed at strategic points around the Endurance, Eventing Cross-Country and Driving Marathon courses.

Misting fans will be available at the finish of Eventing Cross-Country and Driving Marathon.

18. KEY CONTACTS

Key contacts will be provided in updates.

Annexes will be provided addressing biosecurity protocols, Piroplasmosis, and CEM waivers as they become available.

Anne Baskett Veterinary Services Manager FEI World Equestrian Games[™] Tryon 2018

Bill Hay Veterinary Services Manager FEI World Equestrian

Games[™] Tryon 2018

Göran Akerström FEI Veterinary Director

Fédération Équestre Internationale Chemin de la Joliette 8 1006 Lausanne Suisse

ANNEX 1 - WEG 2018 FORM FOR ANTHELMINTIC TREATMENT WITH IVERMECTIN PRODUCTS TO CONTROL TICKS

To assist in preventing the introduction of ticks to the Tryon International Equestrian Center (TIEC), APHIS will require every horse in the WEG to be administered an anthelmintic containing; ivermectin, doramectin, or moxidectin at a dose rate not less than 200 mcg/kg body weight (standard de-worming dose) during the 2 to 4-week period preceding entry to the TIEC. Acceptable ivermectin products include many that are approved for use in treating horses with anthelmintics. The approved anthelmintic will be administered by the National Federation's team veterinarian (or other appropriate veterinarian) or, if necessary, by piroplasmosis-positive horse quarantine personnel or other designated veterinary personnel. In each case, certification of the de-worming will be made by the administering official's signature on approved certificates. Horses will be detained and immediately treated by the appropriate veterinary personnel if they arrive without this required anthelmintic treatment.

Please fill out the form below to facilitate entry into TIEC. If this form does not accompany horses into Quarantine or the TIEC, they will be treated at the first available opportunity by WEG Veterinary Staff at the expense of the team/owner/PR. Failure of competition or non-competition horses to comply may result in denial of entry into TIEC.

Horse Name:
Rider Name:
Nationality of Horse:
Date of treatment:
Administering Veterinarian Name:
Signature of Administering Vet:
Team Vet Cell Phone #: